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OUR VISION
To be Singapore’s premier organisation
of active seniors serving and enriching
lives through volunteerism

OUR MISSION
To provide opportunities for seniors to
serve the community with their talent
and experience
To make the lives of seniors meaningful
and enjoyable through purpose-driven
volunteerism

OUR CORE
VALUES
Life-long learning
Active Ageing
Integrity
Sharing Experience
Service
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NOTICE OF THE
12TH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
6 October 2011
Dear Members,

Notice of the 12th Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting of RSVP Singapore
The Organisation of Senior Volunteers will be held on:
Date : Saturday, 29 October 2011
Time : 2.00 pm
Venue : Queenstown Community Centre,
365 Commonwealth Avenue,
Singapore 149732

AGENDA
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

President’s Review
Conﬁrmation of the Minutes of the 11th Annual General Meeting held on 23 October 2010.
Report of the Board of Management
Financial Report & Accounts of RSVP Singapore
Appointment of Auditors
Any Other Matters

By Order of the Board of Management

Paliath Mohandas (Mr)
Honorary Secretary
RSVP Singapore
The Organisation of Senior Volunteers
Note:
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Members wishing to introduce items for the AGM must inform the Secretariat by 22 October 2011.
Copy of the Financial Report will be posted on the Notice Board at RSVP ofﬁce.
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PRESIDENT'S
REVIEW
The year under review has been on the whole a GOOD YEAR.
We became the 1st winner of the newly established NCSS “Outstanding Award for Innovation”. This award was given
in recognition of the Changi Senior Ambassador, Learning Journey and Senior Guiding programmes. These programmes
met our criteria of engaging our members in mind and body; the value-add - they found joy in doing “national service”,
educating foreigners, the young and the not so young about Singapore.
These intergenerational programmes and our programmes that serve the disadvantaged might have been noted by the
Community Chest panel, for we became a beneﬁciary.
The good work generated by all our programmes and that of our various committees and secretariat are found in the
Annual Report. Please take time to read it. I am sure you will feel proud of our achievements and will be inspired to do
more as members of our community, in doing good with compassion.
For those of you who have yet to be active, I hope by your reading, you will be motivated to come forward and
participate, at least as episodic volunteers or if you really have no time to spare, as donor members.
In my review, I will not touch on all the work of RSVP, but instead will address three important concerns – concerns
essential to the growth and health of RSVP –our members, our people and ﬁnance.

OUR MEMBERS
Our members are the life blood of our organisation. Obviously, without members there is no organisation. But, with
mediocre members, our organisation will just drift. So, we have to admit mature value-based members in order to thrive
and gain strength in pursuing our mission.
To be a value-based organisation with value-based volunteers, we must place membership growth, recruitment and
retention as top priority. Existing procedures have to be further streamlined and implemented proactively.
Today, we have in our register, more than 1,000 members, but only 60% can be considered active. How then can we
go about motivating the rest to meet their commitment to be volunteers? On becoming members, they have in fact
promised to be volunteers.
I believe, we all need to play an active part, working together as a team, to enthuse these members by convincing them
that they will ﬁnd joy in giving. We must befriend them and bring them to events we are involved in, showing them the
good work we are doing, the beneﬁt we are giving and the joy we are receiving. Hopefully, leading by example, we will
convince them to say “yes” to service.
Finally, to inﬂuence others, we must continue to learn about RSVP – our motto, our vision, mission and core values.
Others must know us for what we are - servant leaders – value- based leaders in a value-based organisation before they
will want to join us. Together, I believe, we will prevail.
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OUR PEOPLE
Besides members, the people who work for our organisation are our most important assets. We have been fortunate
that over the years, we have always been able to get people dedicated to our mission to help us move forward. But, sadly,
after spending a few years of competent service, many left. Lately, our staff turnover has been high. The time has therefore
come for the leadership to re-think how we can nurture our people better. Three things must be addressed – staff
welfare, care and happiness; the pressure faced by them and their working environment; lastly, their reward system. These
challenges will be addressed in the next ﬁnancial year.
Meantime, let us treat our staff as partners in service, empowering them more, giving them the respect due and the trust
needed for them to want to do their best for the organisation – and believe in this.
Remember our people report to the Executive Director and the Executive Director reports to the President. Members
are not their employers. Be kind and respectful. I believe this attitude will be readily reciprocated.

ON FINANCE
Money will never be enough. To remain viable and sustainable, we must not only meet our yearly budget but also have a
surplus. We are in fact, under obligation to build a reserve of 2.5 times our yearly budget. Today, too much energy is spent
on fund-raising. How do we overcome this? One way is to enhance our present social enterprise and initiate more social
enterprises.
RSVP ProGuide Pte Ltd will be made more proﬁtable. In the coming year, we will be initiating 2 programmes which in
time will be turned into social enterprises. These initiatives are the establishment of a Volunteer Training Centre, initially
serving our members and the needs of other VWOs and later, the public at large. The next initiative is the “Silver IT Care”
initiative which will serve the much- needed requirements of older persons in dealing with their computer problems. This
service too can be offered to the community at large. For us, being ﬁnancially independent is not an option, but a must.
We look forward to those of you who have the talents, expertise and the passion to participate in these 2 initiatives to
come forward to offer your services.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
We are indebted to our donors and patrons for the continued belief in our mission. I want to especially record our
sincere thanks to all of them, in particular, NCSS (Tote Board and Comunity Chest), MCYS, C3A, Lee Foundation, Tan Chin
Tuan Foundation, Microsoft and IDA.
The success of RSVP is due to the committed participation of all our active members and I want to thank them, each
of them for their leadership, for giving time and energy in doing good, well. In addition, I want to thank members of the
Board for their friendship and unfailing support. To the leadership at large, thank you for ensuring all programmes meet
expectations. To our hard working people, especially, our Executive Director and our Manager, without whose leadership,
RSVP will not be what it is today, we say a big “Thank You”
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CONCLUSION
Looking ahead, we have much to do and we must push on. We must take care of our community and we must invite more
to join us. We must become “The Organisation of Senior Volunteers”.
May I end by quoting what I wrote last year “Our journey continues. As Singapore grows old, as it must, our work will
become more important and much needed. Therefore, we must pledge to always be in the forefront in ensuring that
seniors remain national assets, relevant and productive; and that Singapore be truly an age-friendly city and country,
where its citizens can and will age gracefully in place - happy and contented”.
God Bless.

Overview of Our Achievements
Programmes & Committees

Active Ageing Seniors

Number of
Active Senior
Volunteers

Number of
Clients served

Number of
Volunteer
Hours clocked

241

6,973

996

80

7,282

6,305

151

213,740

24,216

9

18

180

103

16,300

6,297

Mentoring

40

182

2,465

Mentally Disadvantaged Outreach

50

200

3,393

Administrative Support

107

8,000

12,791

Committee Members of all Committees

110

4,415

17

2,268

Cyberguide & MUP
Changi Senior Ambassador
Hosting
Learning Journey/ Senior Guiding

ProGuide
Total

908

252,695

63,326

Note:
Some volunteers volunteered in more than 1 programme/committee.
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MINUTES OF THE
11TH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF RSVP SINGAPORE
held on 23 October 2010 at 2.00 pm
at Civil Service College
1.0 President’s Welcome and Review
1.1 The emcee, Mr Raymon Huang, called upon Dr Philbert
Chin, President of RSVP Singapore, to address the
meeting.
1.2 Dr Chin extended his welcome and thanked the
members for taking time to attend the meeting. He
urged the members to vote wisely to elect an excellent
team to guide RSVP for the next two years.
He also expressed his appreciation and thanks to the
following people:
i) members of the Corporate Communications
Committee and Active Ageing Seniors Programme,
helpers, performers and all the staff working beyond
the call of duty to make the event a success
ii) all the staff for the work done during the past year
iii) Ms Marie Leong( Executive Director) and Ms
Fawziah Mattar (Manager), without whose leadership
and initiative, RSVP would not be able to function
iv) Mr Raymon Huang, for emceeing the event
v) K B Lee & Co , the auditors for the last 5 years and
for donating the auditors’ fees back to RSVP
vi) Five Board members who are giving up ofﬁce:
- Mr R Natarajan(Chairman) and Mr Arun Desai
(Vice Chairman) for their contribution in ProGuide
and bringing in revenue for RSVP since its inception
- Three other board members Mr Chan Pit Seng,
Mr Alex Eow and Mdm Hsu Phillips
vii) Mr Koh Juay Meng who assisted in delivering the
Review in Mandarin
1.3 Dr Chin then expressed his pleasure in announcing
that RSVP has won the NCSS Outstanding VWO
Award for Innovation. He added that winning the award
would put pressure on RSVP to continue to implement
innovative services. Innovation will be formally part of
the core criteria in programme selection from now
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on. He thanked the owners and co-owners of all the
programmes submitted for nomination of the award.
1.4 Dr Chin went on to discuss the business matters of
RSVP.
1.4.1 He encouraged everyone to spend time going
through the Annual Report to know what RSVP
has been doing in the last year, what it intends
to do in the next year and be motivated to do
more as active members.
1.4.2 RSVP is unique in that its programmes engage
members physically and mentally through
volunteerism. Services provided are niche.
As aforesaid, innovation will be inbuilt in our
services, and to do this we must accept change
and ‘follow the wind of change’.
1.4.3 Dr Chin shared with members the difference
between serving the community and doing
part-time work. As members, we pledge to be
volunteers serving the community with our
talent and experience, and at the same time,
making our lives meaningful and enjoyable
through volunteerism. The purpose is not
for pleasure but to render service. Ours is a
labour of love, not a labour to be compensated.
Transport reimbursement given is a special
privilege and not to be taken as payment for
service.
1.4.4 To add value to the commitment of volunteers,
the leadership has decided that each
programme will be encouraged to have 2
bonding sessions a year, subsidized by RSVP and
a fully paid annual retreat. The purpose is for
members to learn more about RSVP, to share
knowledge and experience and to bond. Building
communities that bond and serve is part of our
commitment.

1.4.5 On the subject of membership: RSVP is
a membership organization and as such
membership fee is necessary. The leadership
reluctantly decided to increase the membership
fee to $2.00 per month only after 10 years. Even
at $2.00 per month, RSVP is subsidizing the cost
of each member. Today, RSVP’s expenditure is
$900,000. It received only $360,000 from the
government as grants. Every year, the leadership
has to ﬁnd $500,000 to keep RSVP aﬂoat. With
this realization, the leadership hopes members
will accept the fee increase and not make it an
issue. The leadership, appreciating members’
loyalty and sense of belonging, will look into
ways to add value to membership.
1.4.6 Dr Chin touched on attitudes: RSVP is
committed to building communities – building
a family who believes in serving the needs of
others. Dr Chin emphasized the importance of
having positive attitudes and practising them to
succeed in building relationships. He encouraged
all to start adopting the following attitudes:
patience, kindness, humility, selﬂessness,
respectfulness, forgiveness, honesty and
commitment.
1.4.7 On leadership succession, Dr Chin cited a
quote by the author of “Leadership is an Art”:
“Succession is one of the key responsibilities
of leadership” and another by John Maxwell:
“A legacy is created only when a person puts
his organization into the position to do great
things without him”. He said that on both
counts he and the rest of the leadership have
failed. To maintain long term sustainability, the
organization must make leadership development
an essential part of its culture. Going forward,
every committee will have a deputy to help
do the work of the committee and take over
leadership eventually.
1.4.8 On a ﬁnal note, Dr Chin reminded all to
continue to contribute to the success of RSVP;
working together as a family in unity and
harmony in the community we belong to help
others.
1.4.9 To Ms Maggie Lee’s question on membership
fee increase by 100 % in a “top-down”
approach and conversion to life membership,
Dr Chin clariﬁed that in accordance with the
Constitution the Board has the authority to
raise membership fee without consulting the
general body. The fee increase was announced in
the NETWORK magazine. Dr Chin reiterated
that the organization is not making any proﬁt

from the subscription fees, considering the
operational cost per member is more than $2.
To keep a member, it costs RSVP about $5.00 a
month. In addition, each member will now have
a subsidy of $6 per bonding session twice a year
and a fully paid retreat which will cost $25 per
member. The 100% membership fee increase
over the 10-year period is insigniﬁcant. He
urged members to accept the membership fee
increase and promised that the organization will
look into more ways to value- add.

2.0 Conﬁrmation of the Minutes of 10th
AGM held on 10 October 2009
Mr P Mohandas, Honorary Secretary, was called upon to
conduct this part of the meeting.
He clariﬁed Clause 12.1 under Item 6.2.4 of ‘Proposed
Constitutional Changes’. A staff member does not have to
be a member to become a Board Member.
There being no questions from the ﬂoor, the minutes of the
10th AGM were accepted and adopted, proposed by Mr
Lee Keng Seng and seconded by Ms Florence Tan.

3.0 Report of the Board of Management
Mr Morris Lum asked why photos of the Singing Group
were not featured in the AAS Programme write-up in
the Annual report. Mr Chan Pit Seng clariﬁed that it was
not possible to publish photographs of every event in
the Annual Report as this would not be cost effective.
Nevertheless, he expressed his appreciation of the support
rendered by the members of AASP.
There were no further questions raised. The Annual
Report was accepted and adopted, proposed by Mr Lim
Kok Eng and seconded by Dr P N Avadhani.

4.0 Financial Report and Accounts of
RSVP Singapore
Mr Tong Chew Heng, Honorary Treasurer, referred to the
Treasurer’s Report on page 38 of the Annual Report. He
was pleased to report that the ﬁnancial year 2009/2010
ended with a surplus of $192,000. This was made possible
by a robust recovery in the Singapore economy, the
support of governmental funding agencies, corporate
donors, ProGuide, the generosity of Dr Chin, efforts made
by the Fund Development Committee and members.
He went into detail on the organization’s income and
expenditure and the various sources of funds.
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There being no questions from the ﬂoor, the ﬁnancial
report was accepted and adopted, proposed by Ms Boon
Mooi Kean and seconded by Ms Mabel Chew.

6.2 The matter was then open to the ﬂoor for discussion.

5.0 Appointment of Auditors

6.2.1 12.1(b) Dr Pravi felt that the immediate
past president should still continue to have
voting rights as he is still a Board member.
Mr Mohandas explained that there are two
scenarios in which he has no voting rights. In
the case of the immediate past President who
has completed a full 12-year term, he can only
hold an advisory role and hence, have no voting
rights. In the second case, an immediate past
President who decides to step down before
completing his full term will also hold an
advisory role with no voting rights. He can only
vote when he is elected again to the Board.
6.2.2 12.1(c): He further questioned the discrepancy
on the ruling which requires members to have
at least 1 year of membership to be eligible to
vote. This ruling does not seem to apply to coopted Board members. It gives the impression
that Board members can “helicopter in” without
being active members. Mr Mohandas admitted
that while this is true, the Code of Governance
requires that the Board comprises members
with diverse expertise. Dr Francis also queried
on the abnormal situation where a Board
member is not a RSVP member or with less
than 1 year of membership and cannot vote in
the AGM.
After much discussion, Dr Chin clariﬁed the
situation, stating that NVPC has now even a
system in place to recommend potential board
members to VWOs.
Following this, Dr Avadhani proposed
amendment to clause 12.1 (c ) to read as
follows: ” The co-opted Board member can
be exempted from the one year membership
requirement”. This was seconded by Mr Patrick
Ng and amendment was accepted by majority
vote.
6.2.3 15.1: Dr Pravi remarked that since the President
is also a Board member, it is meaningless to
have the President report to the Board. The
later part of the clause is also irrelevant and
unnecessary. After much discussion, Ms Boon
Mooi Kean proposed that Clause 15.1 remain
the same. The proposal was seconded by Mr
Koh Juay Meng and accepted by majority vote.
There being no other questions raised, the proposed
Constitution changes were accepted and approved by all
present.

PKF CAP LLP has been appointed as auditors. The
appointment was approved, proposed by Ms Lim Bee Lum
and seconded by Mr Lim Kok Eng.

6.0 Proposed Constitution Changes
6.1 Mr Mohandas conducted the proceedings. He went
through the items in the proposed constitution changes
giving the reasons behind them.
Rule no. 5.2: Addition of the words “purpose-driven”
to emphasize the fact that the intention of the mission
statement has always been volunteerism with a
purpose.
Rule no. 8.2(a): Addition of phrase ‘from date of
membership” for clarity.
Rule no. 8.2(c): Clariﬁcation of the requirements of Life
Membership by including statement: “persons aged 55
and above who have been ordinary members for at
least 5 years and contributed signiﬁcantly in services
or ﬁnancially, may be invited by the President to be Life
Members”.
Rule no. 8.2(e): Addition of phrase ‘from date of
membership” for clarity.
Rule no. 12.1(b): Rewording to clarify the role of the
immediate past President.
Rule no. 12.1(c): Addition of statement “The co-opted
member need not have been an active member for
one year” since the purpose of co-opting is to have a
balanced Board as required in the Code of Governance
for Charities.
Rule no. 15.1: Deﬁning further the duties of the
President by adding statement: “The President shall
be responsible for implementing the vision, mission,
operational and strategic plans”.
Rule no. 15.2: Deﬁning clearly the role of the VicePresidents.
Rule no. 23.2: Replacing word “charities” with words
“institution or institutions of a Public Character” as
requested by the Commissioner of Charities to ensure
that upon dissolution of the organization, the remaining
funds will be donated to a similar approved institution
or institutions of a Public Character.
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Dr Francis Pravi queried on a few constitutional
changes in clauses 12.1(b), 12.1(c) and 15.1.

7.0 Launch of new RSVP Website

11.0 Any Other Matters

The new RSVP Website was launched by Dr Chin. The new
features include the latest updates, calendar of activities,
forum (members only) and online donations. Mr Cheong
Boo Hong has been appointed the moderator for the
forum.

As no other matters were raised, the meeting was
adjourned with Dr Chin and Mr Huang thanking everyone
for their participation. Entertainment was provided by
RSVP Line Dancers and guest artistes, Elvis & Country
Group. Refreshment and fellowship followed ending at
6.00pm.

8.0 Photography Contest – Prize
Presentation
Dr Chin presented certiﬁcates to the top 4 winners of the
Photography Competition organized by the Photography
Interest Group of AASP - SeniorsView initiative. The
winners were announced and in order of merit were: Mr
Raymond Goh, Ms Rose Oh, Mdm Goh Kian Yang and Mdm
Leong Yok Kin. They also won attractive prizes.

9.0 Election Procedure

Recorded by: Ms Boo Sihui and Ms Yeo Sock Kui
Vetted by: Mr. P Mohandas, Honorary Secretary

Approved by: Dr Philbert Chin, President

Mr Mohandas, Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
briefed members on the voting procedure. This was
reinforced by Mr Raymon Huang. Before voting
commenced, each candidate was called up to give a one
minute short speech on what they would do for RSVP if
elected to the Board.

10.0 Results of Election
Mr Mohandas announced that the 10 elected members to
the Board of Management 2010 – 2012 were:
Dr P.N. Avadhani
Dr Philbert Chin
Mr Koh Juay Meng
Mr Richard Lim
Mr Loke Ho Yong
Ms Marie Mattar
Mr P Mohandas
Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen
Mr Tong Chew Heng
Ms Brenda Yeow
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BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT
2010-2012

Dr Philbert Chin
President
Mr Koh Juay Meng
2nd Vice President
Chairman, Cyberguide
Programme

Mr Ngiam
Tong Yuen
1st Vice President
Chairman, Learning
Journey Programme
Chairman, Senior
Guiding Programme

Mr P Mohandas
Honorary Secretary
Chairman, Hosting
Programme

Mr Lee Kay Beng
Honorary Treasurer

Mr Richard Lim
Asst. Honorary
Treasurer
Chairman, Changi
Senior Ambassador
Programme

Mr Loke Ho Yong
Chairman, Fund
Development Committee
Chairman,Volunteer
Management Committee

Mr Tong Chew Heng
Board Member

RSVP Singapore - The Organisation of Senior Volunteers
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
ExCo ATTENDANCE (2010 - 2011)

10

ExCo Members

Attendance

1

Dr Philbert Chin

2/3

6

Mr Richard Lim

2/3

2

Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen

3/3

7

Mr Loke Ho Yong

3/3

3

Mr Koh Juay Meng

3/3

8

Mr Tong Chew Heng

1/3

4

Mr P Mohandas

3/3

5

Mr Lee Kay Beng
(co-opted on 17 Oct 2010)

3/3
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ExCo Members

Attendance

Mr John Lee
Mong Wah
Chairman, Programmes
Creation, Assessment
and Development
Committee

Dr P N Avadhani
Vice Chairman,
Cyberguide
Programme

Mr Gerald Minjoot
Chairman, Partnership
Management
Committee

Mr Arun Desai
Internal Auditor
Ms Marie Mattar
Chairman, Corporate
& Marketing
Communications
Committee
Acting Chairman,
Active Ageing Seniors
Programme

Ms Brenda Yeow
Chairman, Mentoring
Programme

Mr Matthew Yong
Chairman, Active Ageing
Seniors Programme
(resigned 18 April 2011)

Honorary
Members
Mr Abdullah
Tarmugi
Mr Lim Boon Heng
Dr Robert Loh
Mr Ridzwan Dzaﬁr
Dato Dr Tan HianTsin
Dr Lau Wai Har

RSVP Singapore - The Organisation of Senior Volunteers
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
BOARD ATTENDANCE (2010 - 2011)
Board Members

Attendance

Board Members

Attendance

1

Dr Philbert Chin

5/5

10

Ms Brenda Yeow

5/5

2

Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen

5/5

11

Dr P.N. Avadhani

5/5

3

Mr Koh Juay Meng

3/5

12

3/4

4

Mr P Mohandas

3/5

Mr John Lee Mong Wah
(co-opted on 17 Oct 2010)

5

Mr Lee Kay Beng
(co-opted on 17 Oct 2010)

4/4

13

Mr Gerald Minjoot
(co-opted on 17 Oct 2010)

4/4

6

Mr Richard Lim

4/5

14

3/4

7

Mr Loke Ho Yong

4/5

Mr Arun Desai
(co-opted on 17 Oct 2010)

8

Mr Tong Chew Heng

4/5

15

1/2

9

Ms Marie Mattar

4/5

Mr Matthew Yong
(co-opted on 17 Oct 2010)
(resigned 31 March 2011)
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SECRETARIAT REPORT
Executive Director
Marie Leong
Manager, Corporate & Marketing Communications
Fawziah Mattar
Finance Executive
Robert Ong
Fund Development Executive
Neo Hong Hong
Volunteer Management Executive
Joan Choo
Administrative Ofﬁcer
Lim Joo Lian
Programme Executives
Boo Sihui
Eleanor Ho
Gary Loke
Lau Wan Ling
Pauline Tay
Ar’Aida Arshad
Staff:
For the year under review, we continued to face challenges
in staff turnover. Staff strength remained at 13, with the
position of Manager for Programme Management to be
ﬁlled.

We wish to acknowledge and thank the following funding
agencies / ﬁnancial partners for their funding support for
the various ICT initiatives:
• NCSS for funding the Client Management System,
revamp of the website and upgrade of 12 staff PCs
through the VWO Capability Fund (VCF) ICT Grant.
• Microsoft for offering the Microsoft BPOS/on-line
exchange email accounts for staff and members/
volunteers at nominal fee.
• IDA for funding 37 PCs, 2 units of LCS projector and
16 iPads for the Silver Infocomm Junction as part of
the Silver Infocomm Initiative scheme.
• Lee Foundation for donating $30,000 in support of the
IT initiatives.
The Client Management System would be enhanced to
improve the reporting functionality for operational and
management reports.

Administration
Major events and activities supported by the Secretariat
were:
• Silver Infocomm Day 2010 jointly organised by IDA
and RSVP from 19 to 21 September at Singapore
Polytechnic and 1 to 3 October at Nanyang
Polytechnic.
• AGM and Election of new Board on 23 October 2010
• Volunteer Appreciation Nite on 10 December 2010

IT Initiatives
The following ICT initiatives were fully implemented
to improve the efﬁciency and productivity of RSVP’s
management and operations:
• Client Management System (CMS) for the management
of members/volunteers, donors and programmes was
implemented on 1 July 2010.
• Revamp of the website was implemented in September
2010.
• Microsoft BPOS/on-line exchange email for staff and
members/volunteers were implemented in July 2010.
• 58 PCs and 2 LCD Projectors were upgraded for
the Silver Infocomm Junction, volunteer stations and
secretariat.
12
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Programme Management
The following programmes’ funding was successfully
renewed for the current ﬁnancial year:
• Microsoft Unlimited Potential (MUP) Programme
• NCSS Tote Board Social Service funding for
Cyberguide, Mentoring and the Mentally Disadvantaged
Outreach programmes.

Improve Internal Operations
A committee had been formed to explore the possibility
of engaging external consultancy services to review
RSVP’s systems, procedures and workﬂows currently in
operation; and recommend cost effective measures to
improve internal operations by enhancing productivity and
strengthening internal controls.
This is in line with our on-going efforts to enhance
accountability, transparency and corporate governance,

Workplace Safety and Health
RSVP had formed a safety committee to prepare the
organisation to comply with the Ministry of Manpower
Workplace Safety & Health (WSH) Act for all workplace on
1 September 2011.
Committee Members are:
Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen
Mr Ignatius Chay
Mr Yap Eng Hock
Ms Boon Mooi Kean
Ms Marie Leong
Ms Lim Joo Lian
We wish to thank our volunteers for giving their time and
sharing their expertise in this important safety project.
Special thanks to the Advisor and pro-bono consultant, Mr
Ngiam Tong Yuen for guiding the committee in this initiative.

Administrative Support Team
There are a total of 107 volunteers in our Administrative
Support Team. 25 are regular volunteers and the rest are
volunteers deployed for events. Services rendered include
reception work, data entry, course registration, telephone
enquiries, mass mailing and providing logistic support for
talks, training and events. They also provide administrative
support for programmes and committees. 11 volunteers
were trained in the Client Management System to support
data entry and they are now very conﬁdent in using the
system.
The administrative support team volunteered a total
of 12,791 hours in various administrative roles for the
ﬁnancial year.
The Secretariat would like to thank our Administrative
Support Volunteers for their contributions, dedication and
untiring support throughout the year.
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REPORT OF
COMMITTEES
Corporate & Marketing
Communications Committee (CMCC)
Chairman:

Members:

Ms Marie Mattar

Ms Anne Marie Gutierrez
Mr Raymon Huang
Mr Jeffrey Law
Ms Serene Mah
Mr Stephen Shea Dae Siu
Ms Janet Siah
Mr Soh Gim Chuan
Ms Nancy Tan
Ms Tan Siew Eng

Vice Chairman:
Mr Peter Tan

2010/2011 was another busy year for the Corporate and
Marketing Communications Committee (CMCC) . Apart
from ensuring that members were kept updated through
our thrice yearly NETWORK magazine and collaterals,
PowerPoint presentations and videos were produced in line
with RSVP’s corporate identity, there were more than a few
activities and initiatives requiring the committee’s assistance
and support. The committee also took a big part in the
production and launch of RSVP’s new interactive website .
The difﬁcult task of getting RSVP in the news was not
without its reward. We are deﬁnitely better known today
and more sought after especially by those who wanted to
learn from and share experiences with our volunteers.

RSVP Interactive Website
The new interactive RSVP website was ofﬁcially launched
during RSVP’s 11th AGM held at the Civil Service College
on 23 October 2010. CMCC, represented in the task
force together with several members of the Cyberguide
Committee, was involved not only in meetings with
the selected vendor but also in the brieﬁng , concept
formulation, content input right through to completion.
With the interactive website now in place, the onus was on
CMCC to update the contents on an on-going basis.

RSVP Corporate Video
With the formation of new programmes, a new corporate
video was required. The scripting, selection of photos,
video shooting, getting a voice talent, arranging for studio
recording and supervision were all done by the committee
and supporting staff. After some initial delay the corporate
video was recently completed.

RSVP Christmas Card
There were more opportunities than one for photography
enthusiasts in the Active Ageing Seniors Programme –
SeniorsView to showcase their photos. Besides displaying
a selection in the photo gallery of the website, CMCC
designed a Christmas card using one of the photos, that
of the second prize winner of RSVP’s First Photography
Competition. The cards were sent to our donors, sponsors
and partners in service.
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Volunteer Appreciation Night

Road Shows and Events

As in past years, CMCC was involved in the organising
of this important yearly event. It saw to the invitation of
the Guest of Honour, Mr Abdullah Tarmugi, the Speaker
of Parliament and MP for East Coast GRC (Siglap); the
drafting of his speech and that of the President of RSVP,
the organising of the Volunteer of the Year 2010 award and
commendation awards, the preparation of special citations
for the winners and the production of trophies. Committee
member Mr Raymon Huang was the emcee for the Awards
segment.

Corporate & Marketing Communications:

President’s Challenge 2011
As RSVP is one of this year’s beneﬁciaries of the President’s
Challenge 2011, Corporate & Marketing Communications
met up with MediaCorp to arrange for volunteer stories
for their President’s Star Charity live telecast on 31 July.

i)

was involved with the Silver Infocomm Day events at
both Singapore Polytechnic ( 19 September 2010) and
Nanyang Polytechnic (1 – 3 October 2010) with RSVP
booth set-up which displayed our programmes and
courses.

ii) participated in the Active Ageing Carnival and the 50
plus Expo organised by C3A from 1 – 3 April 2011.
RSVP’s theme was “ Be Active, Stay Active and Be
Socially Connected....Plus Be a Volunteer today!”. A new
membership brochure was produced for this.
iii) assisted the RSVP Photography Club with their
Photography Exhibition with ﬂyers, display of
photographs and publicity in October 2010.

Similarly, CMCC hosted students from NUS Temasek
Hall Rag 2011 to acquaint them with RSVP Singapore, its
programmes and its beneﬁciaries so that they are aware of
their fund raising efforts for the organisation.

NCSS Outstanding VWO Award for
Innovation
CMCC was instrumental in submitting the nomination
of RSVP Singapore for the above award. Besides winning
the award, RSVP Singapore received a windfall of $20,000
as winner of the category. The good news was sent
to members, donors and covered by Rapport (NCSS
magazine).
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Media Publicity
2010
i)

12 October editions of Straits Times, Today and Zaobao
carried an article titled “RSVP Singapore wins The
Outstanding VWO Award in Innovation”

ii) Nov 2010-Feb 2011 edition of Rapport featured an
interview with Dr Philbert Chin, President RSVP
Singapore as one of the recipients of the NCSS
Outstanding VWO Award.
iii) 24 August article in Little Red Dot newspaper titled
“ Lessons from their Days of Terror” featured our
mentees from RSVP Mentoring Programme. Here the
school children had a glimpse of World War II from the
volunteers’ stories.
iv) September issue NTUC Lifestyle covered a story on
Ms Yeong Yuen Hoe, RSVP IT trainer and the challenges
faced by seniors in their IT learning.
2011
i)

22 February - Straits Times article titled “ A Stellar
Performance” featured our Volunteer of the Year 2010
Ms Stella Tan, an active ager and her many volunteering
ways.

ii) 11 March - Zaobao article titled “ The pursuit of arts
regardless of gender and age” featured Ms Rose Oh
and her pursuit of photography as a hobby.

iii) 26 April - article in Little Red Dot newspaper titled
“Guardian Angels” featured our mentors and their
charges in the Mentoring Programme.
iv) A press write up was sent to National Arts Council
on SeniorsView focussing on how seniors beneﬁtted
through the Council’s support. The write up featuring
Rose Oh was subsequently sent to MICA and the story
was given mention at a Parliamentary session by the
Minister for Information, Communications and the Arts,
Mr Lui Tuck Yew.

Looking Ahead
The Corporate & Marketing Communications Committee
will always face challenges in its task of enhancing RSVP’s
brand equity and helping to realise RSVP’s aspiration of
being the respected and recognised brand for senior
volunteerism. As has been said often times, nothing is
impossible with the support and co-operation of the
management and the various programmes and committees.
Now I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to my
committee members, the secretariat, supporting staff
and board members for their continued support and
contribution during the year.
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REPORT OF
COMMITTEES
Fund Development Committee (FDC)

Chairman:

Members:

Mr Loke Ho Yong

Dr Philbert Chin
Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen
Ms Marie Mattar
Ms Edna Ko
Mr Tan See Kian Robert
Mr Tong Chew Heng
Mr Matthew Yong (resigned w.e.f March 2011)
Mr Tang Swee Seng (resigned w.e.f June 2011)

Vice Chairman:
Mr Koh Juay Meng

Main Focus
Our main focus in the reporting year was to diversify our
sources of donations and to expand our donor base, while
building our internal capability and promoting the image
of RSVP Singapore as a non-proﬁt organisation worthy of
support.

Main Fundraising Events
We started the planning for two events since the beginning
of 2011. They are RSVP Singapore Flag Day 2011 on 2 July
and RSVP Singapore Charity Golf 2011 on 7 September
2011. We are honoured to have Mr Lim Boon Heng,
Chairman, NTUC Eldercare, to be our Guest-of-Honour at
the Charity Golf 2011.

Fundraising Campaigns
The Rotary Club of Pandan Valley organised a fundraising
movie premiere on 27 January 2011. RSVP Singapore was
one of the beneﬁciaries of the fundraising event and we
would like to express our appreciation to the Rotary Club
of Pandan Valley for their generosity.

Over the ﬁscal year, we mounted direct mail campaigns
to seek donations from both individuals and corporations.
Besides raising funds, the objective for these campaigns
was also to promote our mission, community service
programmes and activities among the public. We received
generous support and donations from many ﬁrst-time
individuals and corporate donors, and we would like to
thank them all.
To capitalize on the power of the Internet, we have
embarked on the use of online donation. We are listed as
one of the Charities on SG Gives, an initiative by National
Volunteer & Philanthropy Centre. Besides SG Gives, the
public can also choose to donate via our revamped website.

Signiﬁcant Sources of Funding
As always we are grateful and thankful to the National
Council of Social Service (NCSS), Tote Board, Ministry of
Community Development,Youth and Sports (MCYS) and
Council for Third Age for their continued help in funding
our programmes. Funding, however, remained programmebased and unfortunately in diminishing amounts. Hence it is
imperative for us to seek other sources of funding.
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Corporate Donors

Corporate, Clubs and Foundations

We would like to recognise and thank the following
corporate donors for their generous support:

Corporate

Microsoft Operations Pte Ltd

$129,013

NCSS: ComChest Funding Community Chest

$100,000

RSVP ProGuide Pte Ltd

$30,000

Lee Foundation

$15,000

Tan Chin Tuan Foundation

$10,000

Goodyear Orient Co Pte Ltd

$7,500

Decision Processes International Asia Pte Ltd

$7,000

Rotary Club of Rafﬂes City

$6,550

Singapore Press Holdings Foundation

$5,000

Woh Hup (Private) Limited

$5,000

Individual Donors
We received generous donations from many kind-hearted
individuals. There are simply too many to be named
individually. We would like to thank them all for their kind
and generous support.

$169,754

Rotary Clubs

$6,550

Foundations

$30,000

Individuals

$46,552

RSVP ProGuide

$30,000

Total

$699,293

The Year Ahead
The Fund Development Committee will continue to
embrace the challenges ahead to raise funds for the
organisation. To meet the challenges, the Committee
intends to take the following steps in the upcoming year:
To capitalise on the power of the newly implemented
Client Management System to manage relationships with
donors and potential donors
To continue to promote RSVP Singapore as a non-proﬁt
organisation worthy of support
To diversify our fundraising portfolio
To continue to build and expand our donor database

Donors-in-kind

To continue to improve our human capital in fundraising
and our fundraising machinery

We received many donations-in-kind and would like to
thank all the donors for their generosity.

To improve processes through improved procedures
2 fundraising events to be organised

Where the money comes from

In Appreciation

Government
NCSS/ Tote Board Social Service Fund

$157,984

NCSS – ComChest Funding

$100,000

MCYS/ Council for Third Age GO Fund

$54,811

NCSS/ VCF-ICT Fund

$49,212

Infocomm Development Authority of Singapore

$33,830

NCSS - Outstanding VWO Award 2010 Cash Prize $20,000
National Arts Council
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$600

We would like to thank once again our donors for their
support and generosity. To our volunteers, staff and Board
Members, our thanks for their support and commitment in
making the accomplishments of the year possible.

REPORT OF
COMMITTEES
Programmes Creation, Assessment and
Development Committee (PCADC)
Chairman:

Members:

Mr John Lee Mong Wah

Dr Philbert Chin
Dr P N Avadhani
Mr Anil Changaroth
Mr Koh Juay Meng
Mr Tong Chew Heng
Mr Tay Kok Chin

The Committee was formed in April 2010 at the direction
of the Board. The ﬁrst task then was to establish its Terms
of Reference. This was completed shortly after, and the
Committee set about screening proposals.
The Terms of Reference require that proposals presented
before the Committee are duly screened to establish that
the primary goal of any programme (that may be rolled
out from those proposals) must, ﬁrst and foremost, be
consonant with the Organisation’s Vision and Mission.
The Committee took care not to apply scarce resources to
investigate proposals not supported by robust supporting
justiﬁcations, at the outset.
In the second half of 2010, the Committee investigated a
number of proposals. These included
(a) A study into partnering the Centre for Management
Development (CMD), the training and consulting arm
of ST Electronics (e-Services) a subsidiary of Singapore
Technologies, to provide IT training to Seniors.
(b) An invitation to participate in a Social Enterprise
project called Project Dignity, aimed at providing
employment and business opportunities to elderly
citizens, especially those with some disability or other.
(c) A proposal to provide short-term Grandparents fostercare to children in distress.
(d) A proposal to work with Health Promotion Board
wherein seniors will be trained as ambassadors to
disseminate nutrition information to the public.

(e) A proposal from Sentosa Corporation to enable
Seniors to provide the Corporation with their
professional or vocational services that meet its needs.
The decisions made on these proposals were based on a
set of criteria. The set of criteria is designed to provide
assurance that RSVP's programmes will accomplish
its mission - that of enriching the lives of our Senior
Volunteers and the clients we serve through purposeful
volunteerism - in an efﬁcient, effective, sustainable and
productive manner.
Other criteria include the viability and sustainability (in
terms of ﬁnancial and manpower and related resources) of
programmes arising.
The proposals were not adopted. The investigations
nonetheless provided much impetus to the development
and testing of the set of criteria. The Criteria Framework is
being ﬁnalised.
Also, in the second half of 2010, two existing programmes,
PIHP and MDOP were reviewed by the Committee. It was
recommended that PIHP was to be terminated. MDOP on
the other hand would remain, pending the appointment of
new management and renewal plans.
Going forward, the Committee will continue to review
proposals for new programmes, and examine existing
programmes to ensure their continuing relevance and
ability to meet desired outcomes.
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REPORT OF
COMMITTEES
Vounteer Management Committee

Chairman:

Members:

Mr Loke Ho Yong

Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen
Dr P N Avadhani
Ms Anne Marie Gutierrez
Mr See Chak Wah
Ms Tay Seck Khoon Aileen
Mr Tong Chew Heng

Main Focus of the Year
The main focus of the year was to review processes with
the objective of determining what improvements were
needed to improve our membership service delivery and
volunteer management.

Renaming of Committee
The Human Resource Development Committee has been
renamed Volunteer Management Committee to reﬂect
better the Committee’s terms of reference.

Membership Service and Update
The process and practices of membership approval and
maintenance were reviewed. An improved membership
approval process was put in place to facilitate the
administration of membership applications. As part of
this improvement, a new membership application form
was designed for implementation on 1 July 2011. Actions
were being planned and some had been implemented to
improve communication with our members and to have
greater engagement with them in the development and
volunteering activities of RSVP Singapore.
As at 30 June 2011, there were 1022 members. Breakdown
as follows:
Ordinary Members
Associate Members
Life Members
Honorary Members
Friends of RSVP
Donor Members
20

:
:
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973
19
9
6
4
11
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During the year, we recruited 277 members. This is an
increase of 76% compared to the previous year and
this could be attributed to the increased awareness of
RSVP programmes and activities. The total number of
members who resigned was 187. There were 195 cases of
membership termination. The reason for termination was
mainly due to not meeting subscription arrears.
Members had enjoyed the $12 subscription fee for more
than 10 years. With rising costs, the annual membership
fee has been revised to $24 per annum starting from July
2010. This increase will help to meet the cost of providing
membership services and the other associated costs.
We introduced the GIRO system in early June to make
it more convenient for members to renew their annual
membership fees.

Outreach Activities
There were basically two areas of outreach- through talks
and through participation in events involving seniors/
volunteers
On 10 July 2010, there was an Eldercare Talk by Gabriel
Muthusamy entitled “Volunteerism for the Over 50s” which
was held at the Jurong East Library.
On 27 July 2010, a networking session was held at the
Ministry of Home Affairs.
Two volunteerism talks were held on 24 Nov 2010 and
18 May 2011 at RSVP Singapore. The title for the two
volunteerism talks was “Volunteerism and our Golden
Years”. We also participated in the 50plus Expo held at
Suntec City on 1 & 2 April with a talk on Volunteerism at
the Volunteerism pavilion.

Volunteer Training
Membership induction training was held regularly. New
members were invited to the induction sessions where
they were briefed on the Mission and Vision, active
ageing and volunteerism, and volunteering programmes
and activities of RSVP Singapore. Knowing the various
volunteering opportunities available, they are in a better
position to volunteer their time and services.

BPOS Account and Client Management
System (CMS)
RSVP Singapore subscribed to the Microsoft Exchange
On-line cloud-based technology to improve the efﬁciency
of our membership services. With this service, members
are given email addresses under the unique domain name
of rsvpmember.sg. This is part of RSVP’s plan to provide
better connectivity for our members and improve our
communication with them. Only members with personal
email accounts were given this account.

In-house programme-speciﬁc training was also conducted
under the various programmes for volunteers so that they
were better equipped to carry out the volunteering work.
Cyberguide, Learning Journey & Senior Guiding, Mentally
Disadvantaged Outreach Programme and Mentoring
conducted in-depth programme-speciﬁc training for their
volunteers.

With the implementation of the new Client Management
System, we are now able to manage volunteer information
better so as to achieve greater effectiveness in our
volunteer management.

During the year 16 volunteers and 10 staff attended
various external training courses conducted by the NCSS
Social Service Training Institute and Academy of Human
Development Pte Ltd.

RSVP Volunteer Appreciation Nite was held on Friday, 10
December 2010 at The Grassroots’ Club to recognise
and to celebrate the contribution of our volunteers. The
event was attended by more than 400 active volunteers.
The Guest of Honour was Mr Abdullah Tarmugi, Speaker of
Parliament and MP for East Coast GRC (Siglap). The theme
was Multi-Cultural Night. Ms Stella Tan, an active volunteer
for the Mentoring, Learning Journey, Senior Guiding and
Mentally Disadvantaged Outreach Programme was named
Volunteer of the Year. Messrs John Lee Mong Wah, Koh
Juay Meng and Lee Kay Beng were awarded the President’s
Award for their signiﬁcant contribution to RSVP Singapore.
Aileen Tay Seck Khoon, Paul Lee Lye Teck and Richard Ng
Geok Siang were awarded commendation awards and 27
volunteers were awarded 10-year long service certiﬁcates.
Members were also treated to a sumptuous international
buffet and various entertainment items.

RSVP Volunteer Appreciation Nite 2010

RSVP Annual Report 2010-2011

21

Admin Get-Together Session
A get-together lunch was held on 11 April 2011 to thank
Admin Volunteers for their contribution towards RSVP
Singapore. These admin volunteers helped the staff in dataentry, mass mailing, calling potential donors for donations,
contacting volunteers and members for functions. They
also performed reception duties and attended to incoming
phone calls and enquiries from walk-ins.

Telephone Survey on Inactive Volunteers
& Findings
A telephone survey was done to ﬁnd out the reasons
why members were not actively volunteering with RSVP
Singapore. Among the non-active volunteer members, 57%
cited that they did not have the time to volunteer, 12%
mentioned that they were working either part time or full
time, and 24 % were uncontactable. In line with the ﬁndings,
volunteering opportunities will be created for those with
little time ﬂexibility to volunteer on an ad hoc or episodic
basis.

Looking Ahead
The baby boomers are moving towards retirement
from full-time employment. They have higher levels of
educational attainment and hold higher-skilled jobs during
their lifetime compared to the previous generation. They
have the potential to become signiﬁcant social resource
by contributing their talents, skills, experience and wisdom
to the community. RSVP Singapore seeks particularly to
provide volunteering opportunities for this group.
In the Strategic Plan formulated in June 2011, the following
actions were adopted for implementation in the ﬁnancial
year 2011/2012:
Increase membership base and recruit better educated and
tech savvy seniors.
Have a more robust membership induction process to
support recruitment of seniors.
Enhance Volunteer Management System through process
improvement and application of IT to achieve greater
effectiveness in management of volunteers.
Provide an alternative avenue for members to contribute
through the Donor Member system and other mechanisms
where they can make ﬁnancial contributions.

In Appreciation
As chairman of the Volunteer Management Committee, I
would like to thank all our volunteers for their support
and contribution. I also wish to thank my colleagues on
the Committee, Programme and Committee chairs, fellow
Board Members and Staff members for their support.
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REPORT OF
COMMITTEES
Partnership Management Committee

Chairman:

Members:

Mr Gerald Minjoot

Mr Peter Tan
Ms Marie Mattar
Ms Tan Siew Eng
Mr See Chak Wah
Mr Loke Ho Yong

As the Partnership Management Committee started from ground zero, several issues had to be set in
place. First was the Terms of Reference. This was dealt with at the inaugural committee meeting held on 23
November 2010. A comprehensive, action-oriented strategic plan had next to be drafted, which in the main,
should align closely with the social objectives of the organisations that we want to establish partnerships
with.
The initial step was the gathering of key data to form a list of potential partners and the approach to be
adopted . These were necessary for the formulation of the strategic plan. The list of potential companies
was then tabled, reviewed and determined. Appeal letters were sent out and presentation slides made
ready.
We targeted 100 companies who were already supporting social causes and made promising inroads with
some.
Currently we are building a partnership with SATS Ltd and working with them on areas that are beneﬁcial
to both. In addition we are in the process of connecting with business publications, Chambers of
Commerce, CEOs and HR managers of large corporations to promote the welfare of seniors as a worthy
Corporate Social Responsibility initiative.
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REPORT OF
PROGRAMMES
Mentoring Programme

Chairman:

Members:

Ms Brenda Yeow

Mrs Kathleen Khor
Ms Lily Lee
Ms Elsie Lim
Ms Jennifer Chang
Mdm Helen Tay
Mdm Linda Chng
Dr Paul Sim

Vice-Chairman:
Ms Stella Tan

Presently we have about 182 mentees and close to 40
mentors. The challenge has always been to have better
'quality' mentors rather than numbers per se as true
compassion and commitment coupled with lots of
patience to 'befriend' are really needed of volunteers
in a programme of this nature. Training, exposure and
exhortation can only do so much; it is the attitude which
governs behaviour of the mentors that truly is the crux of
this project of love.
Another issue is that of adequacy of team leadership. One
school of thought has it that 'leaders can be taught'. This
surely, is the critical question that commercial organisations,
let alone charities seek to solve daily. We will do our best
to persuade some to take a leadership role and manage the
programme the best way realistically possible.
The Mentoring Programme continues to be well received
and word of its effectiveness is slowly spreading. As a 'spin
off' from a recent article featured in the Little Red Dot
newspaper, a new school has come on board making a
total of 11 schools in the programme. The programme
continues with its ups and downs in numbers but we now
have a better geographical spread with two new schools,
Unity Primary in the North West and North Tampines
Primary in the East. Our target for 2011/12 is to have 1213 schools and this could well be within reach provided the
numbers are more balanced.
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Going Forward
We are aware of the fact that the educational landscape
is continually shifting as the authorities change policies
now and then towards improvement in curriculum and
methodology. We shall have to try to stay as relevant as
possible since our programme must mirror closely the
school's stated mission and objectives. The 'at-risk' children
of today are also much more knowledgeable thanks to
the Net and they are intellectually more challenging to
manage as they demand to know 'why' to a certain action
demanded of them. Schools could also ensure regular
attendance of mentees by placing greater priority in this
area.

However, it would be amiss not to mention that we also
have certain Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to meet
from our funders. Therein lies the challenge of continually
balancing RSVP's Mentoring Programme's objectives vis-avis our funders’ requirements and with those of the various
schools under our charge.

Cyberguide Programme
Chairman:

Members:

Mr Koh Juay Meng

Mr Richard Cheong
Mr Daniel Wong
Mr Heng Bak Leng
Mr Chow Kwan Shing
Prof Joseph Zhou
Mr Donald Cheong

Vice Chairmen:
Dr P N Avadhani
Dr Francis Pavri

Silver Infocomm Junction
RSVP Singapore would like to extend special thanks to
Infocomm Development Authority of Singapore (IDA)
in helping Cyberguide to replace 37 PCs for the two
Infocomm Technology Centres in April 2011. New seniorfriendly LCD monitors, projectors, printers and speakers
were installed. The new equipment will improve senior
participants’ learning experience and allow Cyberguides to
introduce more sophisticated ICT Courses to seniors such
as the Digital Video Management course.

Cyberguide Trainers and Tutors
To date, we have 80 active volunteer trainers and tutors of
which, 14 are Microsoft Ofﬁce Specialists 2007 and 4 are
Advanced Certiﬁcate in Training and Assessment (ACTA)
certiﬁed.
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Statistics for Training and Talks at RSVP Silver
Infocomm Junction
Subject

No. of
Senior
Courses Participants
conducted

IDA iBegin Courses *

65

817

IDA iLive Courses **

51

660

RSVP In-House Courses

22

269

Microsoft Ofﬁce Courses

48

510

IT Talks

10

353

196

2609

Total

* iBegin Courses are Basic Computer & Internet,
e-Communications, Internet, Basic Computer (Win 7).
** iLive Courses are e-Travel, e-Transaction & Internet Security,
Digital Photo Management, e-Entertainment, Social Networking,
Blogging.
The Daily Practice Sessions held from Monday to Saturday
have beneﬁtted 1133 seniors in this ﬁnancial year.

Microsoft Unlimited Potential (MUP)

Silver Infocomm Day (SID) 2010
Silver Infocomm Day 2010, organised by IDA and coorganised by RSVP Singapore, was held over 6 days on 19,
20 and 21 September 2010 at Singapore Polytechnic and 1,
2 and 3 October 2010 at Nanyang Polytechnic.
A total of 4,673 participants attended the event. Of these,
1,957 attended the seminars and 2,716 attended the ICT
Workshops. RSVP Singapore conducted a total of 108 ICT
Workshops for the event. 47% of the participants were
English literate and 53% Chinese literate. A workshop
feedback was carried out among the senior participants.
83% of the respondents felt that the knowledge and skills
they learnt at the workshop helped them to feel conﬁdent
in using a computer and 88% were keen to take up more
courses under the Silver Infocomm curriculum.

New IT Courses
The following in-house new ICT courses were introduced: • On-line Picasa Web Album Editing (English)
• Using WordPad on Windows 7 (Chinese)

The Train-the-Trainer Session by Microsoft Singapore
on the latest Windows Live Essentials 2011 held on
21 February beneﬁtted 22 Trainers and Tutors. An IT
Talk that followed conducted by our Microsoft Ofﬁce
Specialists updated our seniors on the new features of the
Windows Live Essentials 2011. In the meantime, Windows
Live Essentials courses are being developed and will be
introduced in the next ﬁnancial year.

Path Forward

Microsoft Singapore also shared the importance of cyber
security with the Trainers who will spread the message to
senior participants.

It has been a challenging year with our new and
enthusiastic committee ready to take on the challenges
ahead. For the coming year we will be steering the
Cyberguide Programme to become more self-sustaining,
self-sufﬁcient in a step-by-step approach towards
making it an Information Communication Technology
Social Enterprise within RSVP. While fulﬁlling our
social responsibilities, we should not forget to work
towards achieving our social enterprise goal. I hope that
all members will help to steer the RSVP boat in the
same direction and that we can all share and serve our
community.

Based on feedback from Trainers and participants, MUP
has re-structured Microsoft Ofﬁce courses for Basic,
Intermediate and Advanced participants to match the
learning pace of the seniors.
MS Ofﬁce (English) Courses were introduced from June
2011 to attract more senior participants to register for
MUP courses. ‘MS Word Online (Chinese)’ course using
Microsoft Ofﬁce Web Apps was also introduced to beneﬁt
the Chinese-educated participants.
Since the implementation of the Microsoft Dynamic CRM
system in July 2010, all the 9 Cyberguide Admin Volunteers
are now well-versed in using the system to register
participants in ICT Courses.
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Cyberguide will introduce RSVP Senior IT Care which
will include Train-the-Trainers, Basic PC Maintenance
Training, Roving IT Care Ambassadors , IT Care Clinics at
Community Centres and IT Care Helpdesk/Hotline.
New courses to be introduced will be iPad, Smart phone
and Windows Live Essentials.

REPORT OF
PROGRAMMES
Mentally Disadvantaged
Outreach Programme
Chairman:

Members:

Mr Yeo Thiam Teng (T T Yeo)

Ms Edith De Souza
Ms Katherine Ho
Ms Jeannie Loh

Vice Chairman:
Ms Lee Lily

MDOP started the ﬁscal year with a big bang. A party
was held on 15 July 2010 in IMH’s Multi-Purpose Hall for
150 IMH clients ( day centres) . A group from the Active
Ageing Seniors Programme comprising line-dancers, singers,
and ukelele players, and many episodic volunteers were
involved. Three bus loads of such volunteers made their
way to IMH.
MDOP also ended the ﬁscal year on an equally high note
with a party held on 2 June 2011. The party was specially
organised to showcase RSVP for the President’s Star
Charity 2011 to be aired over television on 31 August
2011. Many MDOP, episodic and Active Ageing Seniors
Programme volunteers as well as two MediaCorp artistes
participated. It was an interactive event enjoyed by all.

Programme Restructuring
During the ﬁscal year, the programme was re-structured
with a renewed mission and vision. A handbook was also
issued to every volunteer.
Past and new volunteers underwent two full days of
workshop training. The ﬁrst workshop equipped volunteers
with basic skills to interact with the clients. The second
workshop introduced several activities that volunteers
could engage clients in. A Volunteers’ Tool Kit (VTK) was
introduced in tandem with these workshops.Volunteers
could draw from the VTK materials and resources.
Periodically new ideas were formed and more resources
added to the VTK.
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As of 30 Jun 2011, teams of volunteers are operating daily
morning shifts in the two IMH day centres - Octave@Bukit
Batok and Octave@Cantonment. They start the day with
relaxation or physical exercises, followed by group activities
and skill-building activities that allow individual clients to
focus on things they like or are capable of doing. Since the
programme restructuring kicked off in March 2011, there
are volunteers in the day centres every weekday morning.
There is also a team of volunteers operating on Friday
afternoon at Octave@Cantonment.
Every second Thursday of the month, a group of volunteers
will visit two IMH wards. Volunteers who do so now are
usually those who also go to the day centres. Because of
their experience with such clients, volunteers are now
exploring ideas of how to make their visit more fruitful for
patients in the wards.

Special Events for Clients
As the new directive was for the clients to be more
interactive, our plan includes bringing clients out on
learning journeys twice a year and holding in-house parties
twice a year so that the clients could be involved in the
planning and organising.
On 15 and 16 March, our clients from the two day centres
went on their ﬁrst learning journey at the Hort Park. The
weather was ﬁne and the clients enjoyed themselves.
On 17 June, Octave@Cantonment held an in-house
party. Then, on 22 June, Octave@Bukit Batok followed
suit. Under the good leadership of Katherine Ho and
Jeannie Loh, the parties have become events that clients
look forward to every half-year. It was heartening to see
volunteers going from one day centre to the other to help
out and interact with the clients and fellow volunteers.

Special Events for Volunteers
On 26 May, a Bonding and Sharing session was held in the
RSVP Multi-Purpose Hall. Jason Wee, Head of Octave@
Cantonment gave a talk about Schizophrenia. There was
much curiosity about the subject. Then the sharing was
followed by planning and rehearsal for the 2 June Event at
IMH. Every volunteer was enthusiastic.
In January and March 2011, two separate visits were
organised for prospective volunteers to visit the day
centres and gain ﬁrst-hand contact with the clients
before they commit to joining MDOP. About 20 potential
volunteers went on the visit and all signed up for the
programme.

Outcome
Average number of volunteer sessions each month is 130.
Average number of client participation sessions each
month is 1,200.
Activities with the highest client participation are mandala
colouring, followed by progressive muscles relaxation,
group singing, and physical exercises.
As of 30 Jun 2011, there are 50 active volunteers serving
200 clients in the day centres and wards. Since March
2011,the average number of volunteers on ward visit each
month is 14.
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Challenges Ahead
Our funders require us to show that MDOP maintains, if
not improves, the social functioning of mental patients. To
this end, our volunteers could see the positive effects they
have made on the lives of such people. Moving forward, we
need to reach out to more such clients. Staying put at the
two day centres will not help.
We are looking into possibilities of operating at other IMH
day centres to reach out to other psychiatric clients, and
ways to engage IMH’s patients in the wards.
Within RSVP, other programmes with attractive perks
could impede MDOP’s recruitment drive. At this point in
time we are glad to report that those who ﬁnally joined
are dedicated to our cause. They could ﬁnd real meaning in
what they do.

Active Ageing Seniors Programme
Chairman:

Advisor:

Mr Matthew Yong (resigned
on 18 April 2011)

Mr Chan Pit Seng

Members:
Acting Chairman:
Ms Marie Mattar

Mr Raymond Goh Seh Guan
Mdm Phillips Hsu
Ms June Tan

Vice Chairman:
Mr Richard Ng
With the turn of the ﬁnancial year in July 2010 and
the AGM in October 2010, the Active Ageing Seniors
Programme (AASP) saw some changes in the set-up of
the programme’s working committee. Mr Matthew Yong
took over the post of Chairman. A note of appreciation
was accorded to Mr Chan Pit Seng for his leadership in
the past two years.
Subsequently, when Mr Yong decided to step down on 18
April 2011, Ms Marie Mattar agreed to assume the role of
Acting Chairman until a replacement is found.
The ﬁnancial year 2010/2011 also saw many events
organised by the Active Ageing Seniors Programme
(AASP). One worthy of note was the ﬁrst ever RSVP
Photography Competition and Exhibition organised
by SeniorsView, one of the two initiatives under the
programme (the other being SeniorsExpress). Held in
October, the activity ended with a mini exhibition cum
prize presentation of the top winning entries at RSVP’s
AGM held on 23 October at the Civil Service College.
RSVP Annual Report 2010-2011
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Our AASP team of volunteers also participated in the President’s Challenge Kite Flying Day on 1 October 2010.
In our AASP enrichment courses, there were a total of 1088 trained participants. In our various outreach programmes, the
beneﬁciaries totalled 6973. (The tables below refer)
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Types of Classes and Nos. of Seniors Trained (FY2010-11)

No. of
Participants

Drawing
Conversational English - Basic
Conversational English - Intermediate
Public Speaking (Gavel Club)
Conversational Japanese
Line Dancing (Beginners and Intermediate)
Conversational Mandarin
Photography Workshops
Singing
Ukelele

123
129
206
70
23
325
14
79
71
48

Total No. of Seniors Trained

1088

Volunteers Outreach to Beneﬁciaries

Volunteers

Beneﬁciaries

Talks (Health and Knowledge Based)
Photographers being deployed for events
Line Dancing Jam (outreach)
Photography Interest Group (members)
Outreach to school children on various Learning Journey outings
Outreach for Alzheimer's Walk at Marina Bay Floating Platform
Mid-Autumn Festival at Kebun Baru RC
MDOP functions (2.6.11)
In-house and invited guests to AASP (SeniorsView) mini-Photo
Exhibition at RSVP

50
27
10
13
7
88
13
23

238
298
51
566
5000
500
145

10

175

Total No. of Volunteers/Beneﬁciaries

241

6973

Volunteer Bonding

Participants

Karaoke
Cultural/Festive Activities

66
234
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Besides the Singing, Ukelele and Line Dancing classes, other classes like
the Drawing class, Photography workshops, Conversational English and
Japanese classes continued to have a strong following from the previous
years to the current. Every one of our AASP volunteer trainers worked
hard preparing their training materials, and putting aside precious time to
share their wealth of knowledge with the seniors who have signed up for
their classes.
Not to be outdone is the large group of our senior volunteers who
participated in as many RSVP in-house and outreach programmes as they
could.

Photography Interest Group
Our Photography Interest Group has zealously followed up with the
many colourful events and places of interest in Singapore. The numerous
outings conducted by the Group to capture the variety of life with their
photography skills during this ﬁscal year include Garden Festival 2010 at
Suntec City, NDP Preview of Fireworks at Marina Bay, 2010 Mid-Autumn
Festival at Chinatown, Orchard Road and Marina Bay 2010 Christmas,
Pinnacle Skyline @ Duxton, Butterﬂy Gardens at HortPark, Butterﬂy Park
at Sentosa, Sengkang Floating Wetland ( PUB Photography Competition),
Marina Barrage and a Hindu and a Chinese temple to name just a few.
Most of the outings and the photographs taken could be found on the
Picasa SeniorsView website. (http://picasaweb.google.com/seniorsview).

The Year Ahead
The committee will focus on more cost-efﬁcient enrichment activities
and more episodic volunteering opportunities in its mission of engaging
seniors with the community, thereby keeping them healthy and active
physically and mentally. One of the areas is in the enhancement of the
Photography Interest Group which has also the potential of being a
contributor in furthering the good image of the organisation.
In conclusion, we thank the AASP committee members and all those who have given their unstinting support to the
programme during the past year.
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REPORT OF
PROGRAMMES
Hosting Programme

Chairman: Mr P Mohandas
Our Hosting Programme has been
going on for over 8 years, the main
activity being with NUS Ofﬁce of
Student Affairs. The other organisation that we have been
partnering is the Ministry of Foreign Affairs.
As mentioned last year, the Hosting programme is an
excellent way for those members who are unable to
volunteer on a continuous basis, to still be active in RSVP. In
addition, it is a way of interacting with visitors to Singapore
whether they be foreign students at NUS or MFA’s visiting
government ofﬁcials.
The NUS programme runs for two 4-month periods.
Semester 1 is from August to November and Semester 2 is
from January to April. Generally what we look for in a Host
are the following qualities:
Ability to have at least 3 interactive sessions per semester
with the student/s:- interest in making friends, openness
to learning and appreciating other cultures, willingness to
share about Singapore culture and lifestyle.
Some NUS suggested activities for the Hosting
Programmme:
Singapore Lifestyle (E.g. invite them home, take them for
tasting Durians);
Invite them for family outings (lunch, dinner, etc.);
Celebrate festivals ( Chingay Parade, Thaipusam, Deepavali
lights, Hari Raya celebrations, Chinese New Year);
Activities that are uniquely Singaporean (visit a Community
Centre, Zoo/Night Safari, kite ﬂying at Marina Barrage,
Duck Tours, Wet Markets, Neighbourhood shops, hawker
centre)
32
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NUS will have Undergraduates, Exchange students and
Post-graduates.
Undergraduates will be studying in NUS for 3-4 years
depending on course of study. Age group will be from 18-22
years old.
Exchange students will be in NUS for only a semester or
at most 2 semesters (1st semester: August to November
and 2nd Semester: January to April). Generally they tend
to travel whenever they can, which makes it challenging
sometimes to be in contact with them.
Post-graduates are more mature. Some do have family
members with them and they are in the programme for
their family more often than for themselves. They are also
very busy with their studies.
As the number of RSVP volunteer hosts have been
decreasing over the last 2 or 3 years, we reached out
to our general membership to seek their participation.
I am happy to note that as a result, we now have 8
additional volunteers who are interested. They were a bit
late for the January intake, but will be considered for the
next round in August 2011 (semester 1).
For the year under review we have 9 hosts in the NUS
family host programme who are hosting a total of 18
students from 10 different countries, which is quite a
diverse group.

The Ministry of Foreign Affairs (MFA) programme is for
a period of up to 4 years. It is for visiting government
ofﬁcials and MFA Singapore/ASEAN Scholars. The scholars
stay up to 4 years to get their Bachelor's degree. MFA has
informed us that they currently have a good number of
hosts (including RSVP hosts), in addition to others on the
reservation list, and therefore are not adding new hosts
now. We have 9 hosts who are participating in the MFA
Technical Cooperation programme.
Our future plans include expanding the programme to
other educational institutions with foreign students, such as
Singapore Management University (SMU).

Changi Senior Ambassador Programme
Chairman:

CSA Supervisors:

Mr Richard Lim

Ms Lucy Cheong Paik Hoon
Ms Florence Cheong Yeok Lin
Mr Richard Ng Geok Siang
Mr Vincent Pong Chee Weng
Ms Dora Teo Bee Ling
Mr Jimmy Sim Chin Chiang
Mr Peter Chang Thaim Meng
Mr Chew Ser Kim
Ms Irene Lee Poh Choo

Vice Chairmen:
Ms Aileen Tay
Mr Paul Lee

Public Relations:
Mr Raymon Huang
The Changi Senior Ambassador Programme (CSA) was
ofﬁcially launched exactly one week after the launch of the
historic world’s ﬁrst Jumbo A-380 service by Singapore
Airlines on 25 October 2007. It was indeed an auspicious
beginning for the Programme that was to last three and a
half years.

Despite it all, the CSA Programme has now come to an
end. The Changi Airport Group (CAG) authorities, while
appreciating the many contributions the CSAs made, have
now embarked on other plans. The partnership between
RSVP Singapore and CAG for the Programme ofﬁcially
ended on 30 June 2011.

From its beginnings of a handful of senior volunteers
recruited, the numbers grew to 151 enthusiastic and active
CSAs, rendering 6, 054 useful and helpful service sessions
to 213,740 visitors from abroad.
The importance and impact of CSA service went well
beyond that. It punctuated the realm of Singapore’s
image and brand as a desirable tourist attraction. Equally
important was the impact the Programme had on the
increasing need to provide desirable active ageing activities
for RSVP members. The CSAs were a living testimony to
who we are – The Organisation of Senior Volunteers!
The CSAs have lived up to all expectations. The service
they rendered to visitors to our shores as they arrived
at the iconic Changi Airport did make the arrival of many
a visitor happy and memorable. The large number of
compliments and expressions of gratitude received from
our visitors is a happy testimony to the high level of service
rendered. All CSAs, from supervisors right down to the
shop-ﬂoor personnel were congratulated on a job well
done. RSVP would like also to extend sincere thanks to all.
RSVP Annual Report 2010-2011
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REPORT OF
PROGRAMMES
Learning Journey &
Senior Guiding Programmes
Chairman:

Members:

Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen

Ms Stella Tan
Ms Lily Lee
Mr Loke Ho Yong
Mr See Chak Wah
Mr Wong Tuck Yin

Vice-Chairman:
Ms Tan Siew Eng

Learning Journey (LJ)
Since its inception in December 2009, the Learning Journey
Programme (LJ) has actively developed new venues in order
to increase our offerings to schools and senior citizen
groups. For example, for this year, we conducted LJs to new
sites like the Keppel Club which highlighted its successes in
being eco-friendly through its GO Green initiative. Bukit
Batok Nature Park is another new site which features
beautiful views of a granite cliff and much greenery and the
historical site of a World War II Japanese War Memorial
(demolished at the end of the war). Existing sites like the
Jacob Ballas Children’s Garden and Memories at the Old
Ford Factory continue to attract schools such as Fuhua and
Fengshan Primary. The HortPark is relatively popular with
senior citizens.
The biggest challenge for LJ is the need for us to bid for LJs
for schools via GeBiz, the government purchasing portal.
Competition is mainly based on price and the possession
of a track record. We are gradually making headway
in building a track record. A few schools have directly
approached us because they have read about us. We
need more of this.
The expectation of schools is also rising. IT assisted
learning is becoming more common. We need to develop
a niche area.
Outside of the schools, we have successfully done LJs
for the Southwest CDC and the Rotary Club of Jurong
Town. We have been more successful with senior citizens
in such organisations and we propose to expand such
relationships.
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At RSVP, we offer unique LJ packages to our members
as well as organizations. We bundled the capabilities of
our LJ and Cyberguide groups to offer an exclusive blend
of learning experience that involves a learning journey
(outdoor) and an IT workshop. We held a workshop to
HortPark and a Digital Photography training session for the
Southwest CDC and it is a promising area for growth.
We again organised a successful LJ for our members
and their families/friends to the Marina Bay area and the
Singapore Flyer during Chinese New Year. This took place
on 9 February 2011. Other than the ride on the Flyer,
participants enjoyed a water taxi ride and visited the River
Hongbao Carnival. The day ended with dinner and “ lo hei”.
The AgriFood and Veterinary Authority (AVA) has agreed
with us to promote LJs to farms and other agrifood related
places.

In the immediate future, we are working with partners
like National Geographic (NatGeo) to increase the
participation of schools. NatGeo has a programme on
environmental conservation and is keen to work with us.
Below are the outreach ﬁgures for the period July 2010 June 2011.
Description

Total

Total number of seniors in the LJ Programme
(Includes writers and editors of workbook, admin
support, trainers, marketing, guides, facilitators,
chairperson & committee members)

153

Children who have beneﬁted from our LJs

1206

Seniors who have beneﬁted from our LJs

718

No. of LJs conducted for Children

11

No. of LJs conducted for Seniors

14

Senior Guiding
Coming into its 3rd year, the Senior Guiding Programme
has gone from strength to strength. Currently we have
Senior Guides at the following sites:
a)PUB sites – Marina Barrage, Newater Visitor Centre and
Open air Classroom
b)Envision Gallery at the Ministry of Water Resources and
Environment
c)Science Centre
d)Heritage Conservation Centre
e)KK Women’s and Children’s Hospital

We will soon be providing a guiding and interpretation
service at the new Khoo Teck Puat Hospital. Training has
been completed.
Training of our guides for the soon to be opened Maritime
Experiential Museum and Aquarium (MEMA) is scheduled
to start in July.
We look forward to expanding our ties with PUB. Our
volunteers have attended Friends of Water Training
sessions. There is also a possibility that we will work with
PUB in its ABC Walking Trails @ MacRitchie.

Looking Forward
With the rapid expansion of the programme, we are
continually recruiting new members to further strengthen
our current pool of 103 guides. These guides are deployed
in both the LJ and Senior Guiding programmes. We aim to
have 150 Senior Guides by June 2012.
The beneﬁciaries of our Senior Guides, whether for LJs or
at the various sites, are the visitors to these places. A large
percentage of these visitors are students because these
places are also sites for the National Education Programme.
The beneﬁciaries would number in the thousands.
With the expansion of both programmes, we hope to seek
funding and continuous support from our partners and
members.
I would like to thank the hard working and dedicated
members of the LJ and Senior Guiding Committee without
whom we would not have been able to achieve what we
have.
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SOCIAL
ENTERPRISE
RSVP ProGuide Pte Ltd

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman:
Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen

RSVP ProGuide Pte Ltd was incorporated as a social
enterprise on 10 July 2004. Its objective is to provide
consultancy and training services so that a surplus
can be generated. This surplus is then channelled back
to RSVP to support its social and community service
programmes. ProGuide has consistently done this because
it is able to draw on the rich professional resources of
RSVP's membership base. In deploying RSVP members in
consultancy and training roles, ProGuide is achieving one of
RSVP's key objectives of Active Ageing.
In the year under review, ProGuide underwent several
changes in its Board of Directors and its Management.
Mr R Natarajan retired as Chairman and was succeeded
by Mr Ngiam Tong Yuen. Mr Arun Desai retired as Deputy
Chairman and relinquished his operational role. We would
like to record our sincere thanks to Nat and Arun for their
wise leadership and many contributions to ProGuide since
its founding.
With Mr C H Tong returning to the work force full
time, his role as the director in charge of operations has
been taken over by Mr Wong Tuck Yin who was appointed a
Director in early 2011.
We had two management changes in short succession.
Presently, our General Manager is Mr Gabriel Muthusamy.
With these changes in management, our business volume
for the ﬁrst half of the reporting year was lower than the
second. At the time of reporting, ProGuide has a healthy
pipeline of projects.
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Members:
Mr Wong Tuck Yin
Dr Philbert Chin
Mr Ramasami Natarajan
Mr Desai Arun Harilal
Mr Paliath Mohandas
Mr Tong Chew Heng

In the year under review, the Company increased its client
base. A major addition is the Infocomm Development
Authority for which we are conducting Social Media
workshops and training. These are targeted at people
sector organizations. Furthermore, we added the Malay
Heritage Foundation to our consulting portfolio.
ProGuide secured and completed three consultancy
projects. These were for Fumar Marine, Children's Aid
Society and as noted above, the Malay Heritage Foundation.
18 training courses under the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
(MFA) and 6 workshops under Social Service Training
Institute (SSTI) and Singapore Management University
(SMU) were completed. In the training arena for MFA we
expanded to Financial Management and IT training .
ProGuide earned a revenue of S$ 217,000. This is close to
the last ﬁnancial year’s. Its net income was S$ 53,000
after taking into consideration a donation of S$ 30,000 to
RSVP. The revenue split was 78% from training and 22%
from consulting. This ratio is in line with our historical
trend. Therefore, ProGuide's business direction is to
emphasize training and to use consultancy to build our
reputation.
As mentioned above, the pipeline is healthy. ProGuide has
$ 270,000 worth of projects in its books at the time of
writing.
The Board of RSVP ProGuide wishes to place on record
its appreciation of the high quality of professionalism and
dedication of our volunteer consultants and trainers. It can
truly be said that these men and women are indispensable.
Thank you very much.

TREASURER’S REPORT

For the ﬁnancial year ended 30 June 2011, RSVP made a surplus of $71,111, with total income of $1,070,185 and total
expenses of $999,074.
Total income, comprising mainly programme income and general donations of $664,164 and $274,553 respectively, was
marginally lower than that of ﬁnancial year 2010. Total expenses were 10% higher than that of 2010. This was because
most of the programmes were heavily subsidised. RSVP carried out 9 major programmes in 2010 / 2011. Apart from
the Cyberguide programme, RSVP subsidised over $180,000 for 8 programmes. Changi Senior Ambassador programme,
Learning Journey programme and SeniorsView programme accounted for 67%, because of lower grants income and fulltime staff recruited to manage the programmes. We shall be more selective in programmes to be carried out in ﬁnancial
year 2011 / 2012, to ensure better utilisation of our resources.
Total grants income including one-time grant of $450,706 recognised for the year 2010/2011 accounted for about 45%
of our total operating expenses. With the fees collected from the programmes, general donations from our supporters /
members, and an innovation cash award of S$20,000, RSVP reported a surplus of $71,111 for the ﬁnancial year 2010 /
2011.
This surplus helps to grow our reserve to over one million dollars. This is slightly higher than the total operating costs for
ﬁnancial year 2010 / 2011. With the major assets of RSVP held in cash and cash equivalents and receivables, RSVP will be
able to ensure that next year’s programmes will not be affected even in the current economic environment.
The aim of RSVP is to build up the reserves to 3 times of the annual operating costs, to ensure RSVP’s programmes and
services can continue to be funded during the lean years. The Board and Fund Development Committee had already
successfully carried out 2 fund raising projects in July and September this year. All these efforts, future fund raising
programmes together with the effort of Partnership Management committee, will hopefully see RSVP achieving its Reserve
goal in the near future.

Mr Lee Kay Beng
Honorary Treasurer
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RSVP SINGAPORE THE ORGANISATION OF SENIOR VOLUNTEERS
(Registered in Republic of Singapore)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2011

Note

2011
S$

2010
S$

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment

4

152,752

96,177

Current assets
Other receivables
Prepayments
Fixed deposits with a bank
Cash and bank balances

5
6
7
8

133,262
8,570
709,673
232,144
1,083,649

168,279
4,052
809,396
108,696
1,090,423

1,236,401

1,186,600

Total assets

Current liabilities
Other payables

11

169,162

181,887

Non-current liabilities
Deferred capital grants / donated funds

10

66,827

75,412

235,989

257,299

1,000,412

929,301

1,236,401

1,186,600

Total liabilities
Funds of the Society
General fund
Total funds and liabilities

9

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RSVP SINGAPORE THE ORGANISATION OF SENIOR VOLUNTEERS
(Registered in Republic of Singapore)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Note
Income
Active Ageing Seniors Committee
Advocacy Group
Changi Senior Ambassador Programme
Client Management System Grant
Corporate and Marketing Communications Committee
Cultural Activities
Cyberguide - Microsoft Programme
Cyberguide Programme
Dementia Research Programme Grant
Fund Development Committee
General grant and donations
Volunteer Management Committee
Interest Income
Intergenerational Walk-N-Fun Day
IT Infrastructure Network Upgrade Grant
Jobs Credit Scheme
Learning Journey
Membership Fees
Mentally Disadvantaged Outreach Programme
Mentoring Programme
Partnership Management Committee
Project Creation, Assessment and Development Committee
Seniors Express
Seniors Guiding
Seniors View
Other Income
Website Revamping Grant
Total income

12

13

2011
S$

2010
S$

117
112,167
48,001
8,909
1,569
124,457
193,277
3,537
274,553
6,640
1,153
100
44,624
21,280
48,071
75,038
322
63
29,856
24,775
10,330
20,000
21,346
1,070,185

4,894
231
115,102
31,155
1,336
1,743
148,235
159.173
(28,200)
6,956
158,745
2,987
1,815
162,204
1,798
17,597
49,222
13,238
60,375
103,352
1,259
39,336
4,365
41,096
404
1,098,418

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RSVP SINGAPORE THE ORGANISATION OF SENIOR VOLUNTEERS
(Registered in Republic of Singapore)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Expenses
Active Ageing Seniors Committee
Advocacy Group
Changi Senior Ambassador Programme
Client Management System
Corporate and Marketing Communications Committee
Cultural Activities
Cyberguide - Microsoft Programme
Cyberguide Programme
Dementia Research Programme Grant
Fund Development Committee
Volunteer Management Committee
Intergenerational Walk-N-Fun Day
Learning Journey
Mentally Disadvantaged Outreach Programme
Mentoring Programme
Partnership-In-Health Programme
Partnership Management Committee
Polytechnic Students Outreach Programme
Project Creation, Assessment and Development Committee
Seniors Express
Seniors Guiding
Seniors View
Website Revamping Expenses
Total expenses
Net surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

2011
S$

2010
S$

290
3,951
157,193
16,067
13,937
1,833
137,863
164,703
93,330
23,264
9
85,376
65,692
78,563
24
7,336
180
1,807
46,028
32,163
46,677
22,788
999,074

4,472
3,878
136,532
63,089
14,618
1,692
145,873
157,019
(30,000)
88,594
14,399
35,794
40,434
42,235
112,669
168
714
2,314
29,486
4,500
37,355
905,835

71,111

192,583

-

-

71,111

192,583

Note

15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RSVP SINGAPORE THE ORGANISATION OF SENIOR VOLUNTEERS
(Registered in Republic of Singapore)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

General fund
S$
Balance at 1 July 2009

736,718

Total comprehensive income for the year

192,583


Balance at 30 June 2010

929,301

Balance at 1 July 2010

929,301

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 June 2011

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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71,111

1,000,412

RSVP SINGAPORE THE ORGANISATION OF SENIOR VOLUNTEERS
(Registered in Republic of Singapore)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Note

2011
S$

2010
S$

71,111

192,583

(27,279)
67,804
(1,153)

(44,842)
77,476
(1,815)

Operating surplus before working capital changes

110,483

223,402

Changes in working capital:
Other receivables and prepayments
Payables and accruals

30,499
(49,949)

(37,479)
(3,675)

91,033
1,153
92,186

182,248
1,815
184,063

(87,155)
(87,155)

(17,774)
(17,774)

18,694
18,694

39,280
39,280

23,725
918,092
941,817

205,569
712,523
918,092

Cash flows from operating activities:
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of capital grants / donated funds
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Interest income

10

Net cash generated from operations
Interest received
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of plant and equipment
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Capital grants / donated funds received
Net cash generated from financing activities

10

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

8

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RSVP SINGAPORE THE ORGANISATION OF SENIOR VOLUNTEERS
(Registered in Republic of Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

1.

General
RSVP Singapore the Organisation of Senior Volunteers (the “Society”) was registered with the
Registrar of Societies on 19 October 1999 and was officially launched on 31 October 1998.
The Society has also been granted Institution of a Public Character (“IPC”) status since October
1999.
The principal activities of the Society are mainly involved to enrich the lives of senior persons by
providing them with the opportunities to participate more fully in their communities through
volunteer service.
The registered office and principal place of business is located at 9 Bishan Place #08-02, Junction 8
Shopping Centre, Singapore 579837.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars ("S$" or "SGD"), which is the
functional currency of the Society.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

Adoption of new FRS and INT FRS

(i)

On 1 July 2010, the Society adopted the new or revised FRS and Interpretations to FRS (INT FRS)
that are relevant to its operations from that date. Changes to the Society’s accounting policies have
been made as required, in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions in the respective
FRS and INT FRS.
These are effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2010:
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS

7
17
36
32
39

Statement of Cash Flows (Improvements to FRSs 2009)
Leases (Improvements to FRSs 2009)
Impairment of Assets (Improvements to FRSs 2009)
Instruments: Presentation- Classification of Right Issues
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Improvements to FRSs 2009)

The adoption of the above FRS has no material impact on the financial statements in the period of
initial application.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.1

Basis of preparation of financial statements (cont'd)

(ii)

FRS and INT FRS not yet effective

The Society has not applied the following FRS and INT FRS that have been issued but not yet
effective:
Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after
FRS 24
Related Party Disclosures
1 January 2011
INT FRS 114
Amendments to INT FRS 114 – Prepayments of a
1 January 2011
Minimum Funding Requirement
The Board of Management expects that the adoption of the above FRS and INT FRS will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
2.2

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method so as to write off the depreciable value of the
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Computer and equipment
Renovation

3 years
3 years

The residual values and useful lives of plant and equipment are reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate at each reporting date. The effects of any revision of the residual values and useful lives
are included in profit or loss for the financial year in which the changes arise.
Subsequent expenditure relating to the plant and equipment that has already been recognised is
added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Society and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Other subsequent expenditure is recognised as repair and maintenance expense in profit or loss
during the financial year in which it is incurred.
On disposal of an item of plant and equipment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and its carrying amount is taken to profit or loss.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.3

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Society's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets'
recoverable amounts are estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group
that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation, credited to other
comprehensive income, in which case it is charged to other comprehensive income up to the
amount of any previous revaluation.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

2.4

Financial assets
Financial assets within the scope of FRS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. Financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial
position when the Society becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The
Society determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end. Currently, the
Society only has financial asset classified as loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These arise when the Society provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Loans and receivables
consist of deposits. They are included in current assets, except those maturing more than 12
months after statement of financial position date, which are classified as non-current assets.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.4

Financial assets (cont’d)
Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:
-

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

-

The Society has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Society has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Society has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Society has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Society’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise other receivables and payables, fixed deposits and
cash and bank balances.
Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at
fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, non- derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
A financial instrument is recognised if the Society becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Society's contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial assets expire or if the Society transfers the financial asset to another party
without retaining control or transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Financial
liabilities are derecognised if the Society's obligations specified in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.5

Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar risk characteristics.
All impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.6

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and unsecured fixed deposits.

2.7

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

2.8

Income recognition
Membership fees and cash donations from individuals and other organisations are recognised when
received. Other income related to functions and programmes are recognised on an accrual basis.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

2.9

Donation-in-kind
Plant and equipment donated-in-kind are not recorded in the books of the Society, unless taxexempt receipts are requested and the values are reasonable estimates.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.10

Grants/ Specific donations
Grants and specific donations are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant and donation will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant or donation relates to an expense item, it is recognised in profit or loss over the
periods necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs, which it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant or donation relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as
deferred capital grant/donated fund on the statement of financial position and is amortised to profit
or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
The Society recognises the amounts received for jobs credit at their fair values as other income in
the month of receipt of these grants from the government.

2.11

Employee benefits
(i)

Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pensions are recognised as an expense
in the profit or loss as incurred.

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
Accrual is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the reporting date.

2.12

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Society has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

3.


Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

3.1

Judgments made in applying accounting policies
The preparation of the Society’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

14
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3.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (cont’d)

3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within
3 years. The carrying amount of the Society’s plant and equipment as at 30 June 2011 was
$152,772 (2010: $96,177). Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments
could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future
depreciation charges could be revised.
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4.

Plant and equipment

2011
Cost:
At beginning of year
Additions
At end of year

Computers
and
equipment
S$

Renovation

Total

S$

S$

168,660
87,155
255,815

244,482
37,224
281,706

413,142
124,379
537,521

Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year
Depreciation
At end of year

118,153
33,377
151,530

198,812
34,427
233,239

316,965
67,804
384,769

Net book value

104,285

48,467

152,752

Computers
and
equipment
S$

Renovation

Total

S$

S$

2010
Cost:
At beginning of year
Additions
Disposal
At end of year

151,452
17,774
(566)
168,660

244,482
244,482

395,934
17,774
(566)
413,142

Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year
Depreciation
Disposal
At end of year

79,932
38,787
(566)
118,153

160,123
38,689
198,812

240,055
77,476
(566)
316,965

Net book value

50,507

45,670

96,177

Included in plant and equipment as at the end of financial year is plant and equipment with carrying amount
of S$66,827 (2010: S$75,412) under capital grant and donated fund (Note 10).
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5.

Other receivables

Grant/fund receivables
Accrued income
Deposits

2011
S$
32,158
83,315
17,789
133,262

2010
S$
116,363
22,818
29,098
168,279

The carrying amount of other receivables approximate their fair values and are denominated in
Singapore Dollars.
6.

Prepayments
2011
S$
8,570

2010
S$
4,052

2011

2010

Maturity period of three months or less
Maturity period from reporting date (days)
Effective interest rate (% per annum)
Carrying amounts (S$)

8 to 91
0.15
657,636

8 to 91
0.15
757,488

Maturity period of more than three months
Maturity period from reporting date (days)
Effective interest rate (% per annum)
Carrying amounts (S$)

134
0.25
52,037

134
0.25
51,908

709,673

809,396

Prepayments
Prepayments are denominated in Singapore Dollars.

7.

Fixed deposits with a bank

Total carrying amounts (S$)

The carrying amount of fixed deposits with a bank approximate their fair value and are denominated
in Singapore Dollars.
8.

Cash and bank balances

Petty cash
Cash at bank
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S$
1,104
231,040
232,144

2010
S$
1,500
107,196
108,696
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8.

Cash and bank balances (cont’d)
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
2011
S$
232,144
709,673
941,817

Cash and bank balances
Fixed deposit with a bank (Note 7)
Cash and cash equivalents
9.

2010
S$
108,696
809,396
918,092

General fund
The General Fund represents accumulated surplus and is available to apply for general purpose of
the Society.

10.

Deferred capital grant/ donated fund
2011
S$
75,412
18,694
(27,279)
66,827

At beginning of year
Grant/donation received
Amortisation
At end of year

2010
S$
80,974
39,280
(44,842)
75,412

The amortisation of the deferred capital grant / donated fund has been allocated to the respective
programmes that have benefited from the use of the plant and equipment funded by the grant /
donation and are included as part of the income from the respective programmes as disclosed in the
statement of comprehensive income.
11.

Other payables
2011
S$
75,765
9,104
47,069
37,224
169,162

Grants received in advance
Membership fee received in advance
Accruals
Provision for restoration cost

2010
S$
78,026
10,434
93,427
181,887

The carrying amount of other payables approximate their fair value and are denominated in
Singapore Dollars.
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12.

General grant and donations
The general grant and donations represents donations received from general public and government
bodies. Included in the general grant and donations in current year is a one time grant of S$100,000
allocated by National Council of Social Service from the fund raised through the Community Chest.

13.

Other income
2011
S$
20,000
20,000

Innovation cash award received from NCSS
Others

14.

2010
S$
404
404

Income
Included in the following programmes are grants from the National Council of Social Service (NCSS),
Council for Third Age, Infocomm Development Authority of Singapore (iDA) and National Arts
Council as follows:
iDA

Dementia Research Grant
Cyberguide Programme
Mentoring Programme
Mentally Disadvantaged Outreach
Programme
IT Infrastructure Network Upgrade
Revamping of Website
Upgrading of Computers and Projectors
Client Relationship Management
System

Changi Senior Ambassador Programme
Learning Journey
Seniors Express
Seniors View
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NCSS

2011
S$
-

2010
S$
-

2011
S$
48,094
63,719

2010
S$
(21,000)
45,256
59,916

2,819

-

46,171
3,093
15,952
822

57,839
2,320
-

-

-

23,396

31,155

National Arts Council
2011
2010
S$
S$
600
2,400

Council for Third Age
2011
2010
S$
S$
17,840
53,420
29,828
41,759
4,081
20,403
3,062
30,623
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15.

Net Surplus for the year
The net surplus was arrived at after charging the following items which were apportioned to various
programmes' expenses.
2011
2010
S$
S$
Depreciation of plant and equipment
67,804
77,476
Employee benefits (Note 16)
482,583
382,744
Operating lease expenses
70,263
70,263

16.

Employee benefits

Salary and bonus
CPF/SDF contributed by the Society

2011
S$
441,094
41,489

2010
S$
353,522
29,222

482,583

382,744

3

3

Number of key executives

The remuneration of key executive is determined by the Board of Management of the Society.
Remuneration bands of top key executives of the Society:
- Less than $100,000
17.

2011
3

2010
3

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel of the Society are those persons having the authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Society.
The Board of Management are considered as key management personnel of the Society.
There is no key management personnel compensation, which is required for disclosure, as all board
of management are volunteers.

18.

Income tax status
The Society is an approved charity under the Charities Act, Cap 37, and is exempted from income
tax.
With effect from the Year of Assessment 2008, the requirement for the Society to spend at least
80% of their annual receipts on charitable objects in Singapore within 2 years in order to enjoy
income tax exemption has been removed. The Society therefore enjoys automatic income tax
exemption.
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18.

Income tax status (cont’d)
During the year, tax deduction receipts were issued for donation amounting to S$272,088 (2010:
S$371,723).

19.

Operating lease commitments
At reporting date, commitments in respect of non-cancellable operating lease for the rental of office
premise are as follows:

Within one year
Between two to five years

2011
S$

2010
S$

70,263
23,194
93,457

70,263
82,284
152,547

The Society leases its office under operating lease. The lease typically runs for a period of 3 years,
expiring on 12 October 2012. The conditions to comply with during the renewal terms are that the
Society maintained its membership with National Council of Social Service, holding IPC status and
uses the premises for its programmes.
20.

Financial risks and management
Risk management objectives and policies
Risk management is that integral to the whole operation of the Society. The Society has a system of
controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of
managing the risks. The management continually monitors the Society's risk management process
to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the Society's activities.

i) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a loss to the Society. The major classes of financial assets of the Society are bank deposits and
other receivables. Cash and fixed deposits are placed with banks which are regulated. Other
receivables are mainly grant receivables from government institutions. The Society does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligation.

ii) Foreign currency risk
The Society has minimal currency exposures arising from transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the Society.

iii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amount of the Society’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values
due to relatively short-term maturities of these financial instruments.
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20.

Financial risks and management (cont’d)
Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

iv)Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Society encounters difficulties in meeting its short-term
obligations. Liquidity risks are managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The Society
exercises prudent liquidity and cash flow risk management policies and aims to maintain sufficient
liquidity and cash flow at all times to meet its normal operating commitments. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Society's financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual undiscounted cash flow:
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Society’s financial liabilities at the reporting
date based on contractual undiscounted cash flow:
2011
S$
47,069

Less than 1 year

2010
S$
93,427

v)Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Society's financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Society's exposure to
interest rate risk arises primarily from interest rates applicable to fixed deposits with banks.

Sensitivity analysis
For variable rate fixed deposits with banks, a change of 50 basis point (bp) in interest rate at the
reporting date would increase/(decrease) surplus by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

50 bp increase

Surplus
50 bp decrease

30 June 2011
Fixed deposits interest

S$

S$

3,548

(3,548)

30 June 2010
Fixed deposits interest

4,047

(4,047)

vi) Reserves management
The reserves of the Society comprise the General Fund. The ratio of General Fund to the annual
Operating expenditure is 1.00 (2010:1.03). The Society hopes to build up the reserves to 3 times
of the annual operating expenditure. This will ensure that the Society's programmes and services
can continue to be funded during lean years.
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21.

Comparative figures
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to enhance
comparability with the current year’s financial statements.
As a result, certain line items of the comparatives have been amended on the face of the
statement of comprehensive income to conform to the current year’s presentation.
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Income
Active ageing seniors committee
Advocacy group
Amortisation of Grant/ Fund
Changi senior ambassador programme
Client management system
Corporate & marketing communications committee
Cultural activities
Cyberguide - Microsoft programme
Cyberguide programme
Dementia research programme grant
General grant and donations
Fund development committee
Volunteer management committee
Interest income
Intergenerational walk-n-fun day
IT infrastructure network upgrade grant
Jobs credit
Learning journey
Membership fee
Mentally disadvantaged outreach programme
Mentoring programme
Project creation, assessment & development committee
Seniors Express
Seniors Guiding
Seniors View
Other income
Total income
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Previously
reported

After
reclassification

2010

2010

S$

S$

4,681
44,842
108,470
31,155
1,336
1,713
141,616
151,294
(28,200)
158,745
2,987
1,815
162,204
1,798
17,597
46,939
13,238
57,839
96,202
1,140
37,699
4,245
38,659
404
1,098,418

4,894
231
115,102
31,155
1,336
1,743
148,235
159,173
(28,200)
158,745
6,956
2,987
1,815
162,204
1,798
17,597
49,222
13,238
60,375
103,352
1,259
39,336
4,365
41,096
404
1,098,418
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21.

Comparative figures (cont’d)
The above reclassification has not resulted in any changes to the comparative figures on the
statement of financial position of that financial year. Management is of the view that presentation
of the statement of financial position as at the beginning of the comparative period would not bring
any benefit to the users of the financial statements; hence, there is no presentation of three
statements of financial position despite the reclassification of item as disclosed above.

22.

Authorisation of financial statements
The Society’s financial statements were authorised by the Board of Management for issue on 11
October 2011.
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DONORS &
BENEFACTORS
DONATIONS > $10,000
DONOR
Microsoft Operations Pte Ltd
NCSS: ComChest Funding
RSVP Proguide Pte Ltd
Lee Foundation

AMOUNT
$129,013
$100,000
$30,000
$15,000

DONATIONS $1,000 TO $10,000
DONOR
Tan Chin Tuan Foundation
Goodyear Orient Co. Pte Ltd
Decision Processes International Asia PL
Rotary Club of Rafﬂes City
Chan Lay Chin
Estate of Tan Eng Heng
Chan Siew Yoke
Singapore Press Holdings Foundation
Woh Hup (Pte) Ltd
Tong Chew Heng
Great Eastern Life Asssurance Co Ltd
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AMOUNT
$10,000
$7,500
$7,000
$6,550
$6,000
$6,000
$5,400
$5,000
$5,000
$4,600
$3,250

DONATIONS $1,000 TO $10,000
DONOR
OCBC Ltd
Dennis Wee Realty Pte Ltd
Loh Buck Noi Judy
Ngiam Tong Yuen
Comfort Delgro Corpn Ltd
Leelloyds Marine Engineering Pte Ltd
Singapore Technologies Electronics Ltd
Wee Chwee Heng
Adeline Wee Keng Yee
Richard Guan
Benjamin Loh
Gaylin International Pte Ltd
Hexacon Construction Pte Ltd
L.C. Development Ltd
Lam Thye Hang Pte Ltd
Rajamohan Munisa
Siah Gek Quee
Tiong Aik Construction Pte Ltd

AMOUNT
$2,990
$2,500
$2,500
$2,010
$2,000
$2,000
$2,000
$2,000
$1,500
$1,500
$1,160
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000

The charity has complied with 20 out of 20 applicable guidelines of the Code of Governance
Evaluation Checklist for Institutions of a Public Character (IPCs).
(Full checklist is available at www.charities.gov.sg)
RSVP Singapore The Organisation of Senior Volunteers was registered as a society on 19 October 1999 and was accorded charity status
under the Charities Act on 28 October 1999.
ROS Registration Number: ROS 0307/1998 WEL
Charity Registration Number: 01394
Registered address: 9 Bishan Place, #08-02 Junction 8 Shopping Centre, Singapore 579837
Banker: DBS Bank, OCBC Bank
Auditor: PKF-CAP LLP
Legal Advisors: Mr Francis Xavier, Rajah & Tann and Mr Anil Changaroth, Aequitas Law LLP
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Tel: 6259 0802
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Email
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